

Confirmed Minutes of the Strategy & Delivery Committee
[bookmark: _GoBack]Held on 14th September at 09:00 – 12:30
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	Michael Imperato
	MI
	Independent Member - Legal

	Present:
	
	

	Gary Baxter
	GB
	Independent Member - University

	Sara Moseley
	SM
	Independent Member - Third Sector

	Ceri Phillips
	CP
	Vice Chair

	Rhian Thomas
	RT
	Independent Member - Capital & Estates

	In Attendance:
	
	

	Charles Janczewski
	CJ
	Chair 

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Rachel Gidman
	RG
	Executive Director of People & Culture

	Fiona Kinghorn
	FK
	Executive Director of Public Health

	Ruth Walker
	RW
	Executive Director of Nursing

	Abigail Harris
	AH
	Executive Director of Strategic Planning

	Catherine Phillips
	CPH
	Executive Director of Finance

	Caroline Bird
	CB
	Deputy Chief Operating Officer

	David Thomas
	DT
	Director of Health & Digital Intelligence

	Emma Cooke
	EC
	Head of Therapies

	Hayley Dixon
	HD
	General Manager ENT, Ophthalmology & Dental 

	Sharon Beatty
	SB
	Primary Care Optometric Advisor

	Clare Elizabeth Evans
	CEE
	Head of Primary Care

	Gareth Bulpin
	GB
	Technical Development Manager - IM & T

	Victoria Legrys
	VL
	Programme Director – Strategic Planning

	Adam Wright
	AW
	Head of Service Planning

	James Gibbons
	JG
	Head of Learning, Education & Development

	Observers:
	
	

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nikki Regan
	NR
	Corporate Governance Officer

	Apologies:
	
	

	Steve Curry
	SC
	Chief Operating Officer



	Item No
	Agenda Item
	Action

	SDC/21/09/001
	Welcome & Introductions
	

	SDC/21/09/002
	Apologies for Absence

Apologies were noted from Steve Curry & Jane Moore

	

	SDC/21/09/003
	Declarations of Interest 

The Independent Member for University (IMU) declared an interest for working with the Optometry school in Cardiff University. 

	

	SDC/21/09/004
	Minutes of the meeting held on 13th July 2021

 

The Committee Chair (CC) raised a comment in relation to the Welsh Language point referred to on page 5 of the previous minutes and queried what progress had been made regarding the Welsh Language Standards in relation to the Health Board’s website.   The Executive Director of People & Culture (EDPC) responded that she had discussed the matter with the Communications team, that circa 1500 pages had been translated and that she anticipated that the remaining 1800 or so pages would be completed by October.

The Chair explained that the Minister was keen for this to be done as soon as possible in order to better promote the Welsh Language. 

The Independent Member for Third Sector (IMTS) referred to the previous minutes and queried if any progress had been made with regards to specifying Welsh as an essential criteria for certain jobs. The Executive Director for People and Culture (EDPC) said she recognised the importance of the Welsh Language in the workplace and the importance of building this into the recruitment process. She commented that the Health Board was reviewing those jobs where the Welsh Language could be viewed as an essential criteria The CC added that limited assurance had previously been given on this matter and hence he recommended that the matter should be brought back to the next Committee meeting for an update. 

The EDPC explained that the Health Board should comply with 120 standards and that currently the Health Board had complied with 70. 

The Director of Corporate Governance recommended that the Welsh Language should be added into the Health Board’s internal audit tracker for tracking and review. 

The Executive Director of Public Health (EDPH) stated that were some minor changes to wording on page 8 should be made.  It was agreed that the EDPH would follow this up in an email to the Corporate Governance team. 


The Committee Resolved that:

a) Subject to the EDPH’s minor amendments to page 8, the minutes of the meeting held on 13th July 2021 be approved as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

	

	SDC/21/09/005
	Action log of the meeting held on 13th July 2021

The EDPC explained that: -

Action Number 21/05/012 - further work was being carried out in relation to well-being and recommended that this action should be brought back to the next Committee; and 

Action Number 21/07/010 – she required further clarity with regards to this action and would report back and update the DCG before the next Committee.

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The Committee action log updates from13th July 2021 were noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/006
	Chairs Action taken following meeting on 13th July 2021

No chairs actions had taken place since the previous meeting. 
	

	
	Items for Approval
	

	SDC/21/09/007
	Policies for approval: 
NHS Wales Secondment Policy

The EDPC explained that this draft policy has been reviewed and amended with some minor changes. 

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The revised NHS Wales Secondment Policy be formally adopted.

	

	
	Items for Review and Assurance
	

	SDC/21/09/008
	Shaping Our Future Wellbeing Strategy (SOFW) Update:
(a) Flash Update – Strategic Programme 

The Executive Director of Strategic Planning (EDSP) provided an update. Overall, an architecture of where the programmes fit had been developed which included the following matters:

- The governance structure for the four key programmes had been refined as set out in her covering report.  Most of these recovery programmes had a green status. 

·  Scoping work carried out last year identified the level of programme capacity and resource. However, not all resources were in place yet. 

· Shaping Our Future Hospitals (SOFH) programme – this had a red status.  The programme business case (PBC) had previously been taken to Welsh Government.  There was more work to be done and the aim was to submit the PBC to Welsh Government for approval before Christmas. 

· Additional resources were being sought for both Clinical and the Transformation programme. 

· The At Home programme was on course and had a green status. There was not a formal report on Population Health. The Executive Director of Public Health (EDPH) would look at this. 

The Independent Member for the Third Sector (IMTS) noted that the covering report and attached appendices captured the current position in a clear way. She queried if the current level of resource was as expected and/or required.  She also queried what engagement had been carried out with clinicians - that is, how a way could be found to allow specific clinicians to be freed up from their day jobs so that they could feed into these programmes.

The EDSP explained that her team were working closely with the recovery team and funding was available for the next 2 clusters.  This was key to how the team transform delivering services. The pressure from the emergency care system was intense, but staff still wanted to be involved with developing the future system. A high number of clinicians attended the workshop for the proposed UHW 2.   This was important because there was little point in developing a model which could not be delivered.  

The Vice Chair (VC) asked if there was an update with regards to SOFH meeting in August. The EDSP confirmed that she had received feedback from WG, her team had intended to submit the revised programme business case to Welsh Government in early October.  Once Welsh Government have endorsed the PBC the Health Board would be able to more to the next stage and work through and test the realistic options.  

The Chair mentioned that the Shaping our Future Hospitals business case was raised at his appraisal with the Minister.  He reminded the Committee that the Shaping our Future Hospitals programme would bring significant economic benefits across Wales and not just in Cardiff & the Vale. 

The independent Member for Estates (IME) flagged the importance of meeting the projected targets over the next 2 weeks.  

The EDSP explained that the flash report indicated this work was still maturing and that the IMTP would connect the narrative from the programmes and tease out the milestones. 

The Chair said that he liked the flash report as it kept the Committee aware of the broader issues. He commented that the milestones should be SMART and that there was scope for this Committee to look at the recovery plans. He added that he was not convinced that the recovery programmes were being appropriately monitored and that the Board should have an overview. 

The Executive Director of Public Health (EDPH) commented that she was undertaking work with regards to future Population Health and would report the outcome to Board.

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer (DCOO) stated that she echoed the EDSP’s comments. The first portfolio board meeting had taken place. The flash reporting had been utilised for the recovery programme and a dash board was being developed. It was in a draft format and she suggested that it would be good to bring an update to the next meeting. 

The Independent Member for University (IMU) queried how the Health Board was capturing stakeholder engagement in the various strands. The IMU commented that on a recent patient visit to a ward he had wondered how the design would link to the new hospital.  There would need to be ample opportunity for staff to engage in the programme. He therefore suggested that stakeholder engagement, including staff engagement, was also captured in the flash report.

The EDSP said this is one item that had not been highlighted in the progress report.  She commented that despite no agreed funding from Welsh Government for SOFC business case, the Health Board had decided to progress with this piece of work and recruit new members of staff.  The EDSP commented that the design of the new proposed hospital should have regard to the importance of how the space feels, access to fresh air, day light and temperature control, space for staff to have down time, and include an area for patients to start rehabilitation on a ward.  The EDSP added that the current UHW had been developed at a time when healthcare provision was very different.  She commented that one of the Clinical Board directors would be joining the UHW 2 project. 

The IMTS added that it was reassuring to hear that clinical views were being captured and stressed the importance of undertaking key stakeholder engagement with regards to the Home/Shaping our Future Community Services programme.  

The Committee Resolved that:

a ) The updated governance framework was noted; and 
b) The progress and risks described in the Programme Portfolio Flash Report were noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/009
	Shaping Our Future Clinical Services Rehabilitation Model Implementation Update

Emma Cooke (EC) presented to the Committee and provided the following information: -

· Rehabilitation was a key priority programme.
· An audit had taken place to develop the programme and a “living well” programme in partnership with the college. 
·  7 work streams had been identified. 
· Specific work in relation to trauma- had been undertaken.
· A workshop had taken place in July to consider the model and four tiers were identified: -   
           Tier 1 - “using community assets”.
           Tier 2 - “people helping themselves”. 
           Tier 3 - “support met be well”. This was likely to be group based.
           Tier 4 - “working with me to be well” - (1 to 1 complex intervention to be professionally led). 

· Every service should have tier 1 – 4 offering
· With COVID recovery money, the team had recruited staff for the “living well” programmes to help people with chronic conditions.
· Health Board staff and leisure staff would be given training together, given that the teams would be co-delivering in leisure. 
· the main point was to  move away from the bio-medical model and be more individualised to enable people who lived with chronic conditions  better access to resources, and to reduce the over medicalisation. 
· The team were looking at a number of programmes aimed at providing patients with the ills and information to enable them to decide about their well-being. 
· The presentation provided an overview of how the programmes would look. 
· The team were continuing to keep the “keeping well” website up to date. 
· Some services had been migrated to the digital platform.
· Cancer rehabilitation – a team had been recruited and an agreed model of care has been put in place.  

The EDPH commended the fantastic work and the systematic approach undertaken. 

The IMTS noted that this was a moving piece of work and that it would be helpful, to put this into context, to see how many people in Cardiff and Vale were living with chronic conditions.  She also queried what were the motivational elements that could be built into the programme.

EC responded that all staff were receiving training with regards to motivational interview skills, self-management and well-being skills. 

The IMTP noted that mental health and long-term conditions had a strong link. She suggested that the team considered how sending encouraging messages could be built into the programme. EC confirmed that this was being built into the website. 

The Vice Chair (VC) was interested to know how the team identified the scope of people who would be impacted and would benefit by this programme. In a project like this the team would need to monitor and manage the same over a long-term period and hopefully it would lead to less medical intervention. 

The Chair thanked EC for the presentation. He also queried whether the work being undertaken in partnership with the local authorities needed to sit with the Regional Partnership Board and/or Public Service Boards?  He commented that there could be some economic benefits and that these routes should be explored as this issue was not just a health issue. 

The EDPH highlighted that this programme should not be seen on its own and that the “move more, eat well” aspects should link up with other programmes.  

The Committee Resolved that:
a) The content of the Shaping Our Future Clinical Services Rehabilitation Model Implementation Update was noted.


	

	SDC/21/09/010
	Shaping Our Future Clinical Services Update

Victoria Legrys (VL) gave an update from the last 6 months of the programme and she provided comment on the following:-

· The programme related to the design and transformation of clinical pathways. 
· A lot of work in relation to ophthalmology had been carried out.
· The team had focussed on how to transform   clinical pathways and meet the future demands of the Health Board’s population.  
· The team had tested the case for change and the public engagement undertaken had identified a need to transform clinical services. 
· The “start well, live well, age well” theme had been used. 
· Staff working in the services were involved in the programme. 
· The key themes noted from the engagement undertaken were –
· Digital transformation
· Workforce

VL commented further that:

· Work was being carried out in relation to vascular transformation with major trauma identified as the next area of work. The team had delivered clinical strategy workshops.  Feedback received from these workshops was very positive. 

· During the last 12 months, the team had met with every Clinical Directorate team to discuss and identify areas for change and those areas where support was needed. 

· The team had recognised the importance of adopting a collaborative approach and had worked with external companies and utilised links with the Local Public Health Team. 

· The team should identify resource and champions across the Health Board. 

The CC thanked VL for the work undertaken by her team and asked who signed off the vascular work. VL confirmed that this was a regional programme across Cardiff & Vale, Aneurin Bevan, and Cwm Taf Morgannwg & Powys, and that a report had been taken to all four Health Boards.  She confirmed that the business case had been signed off by the collaboration programme board. 

The IMU recognised there was a need to transform clinical services before the new hospital could be developed. He also stated that no-one should under estimate the scale of what needed to be achieved to deliver this programme.  The IMU also queried how progress be measured in a complex programme like this. He noted that one of the consultation quotes was ‘I don’t mind being on a waiting list, as long as I am told’. He asked would be changed to ensure that the Health Board was telling people they were on waiting lists.
The DCOO acknowledged that some work was required with regards to communicating with patients. There were several communications with texts / letters with our longest waiting patients. This was in progress and would continue to progress when the resources were in place. 

The Committee Resolved that:
a) The content of the Shaping Our Future Clinical Services Rehabilitation Model Implementation Update report was noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/011
	Specialist & Tertiary Services Strategic Plan Update
The Chair noted that all members of the Committee had read the covering report included in the Committee papers and that no queries or comments were raised in connection with the same. 

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The update from the Regional and Specialised Services Provider Planning Partnership was noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/012
	People & Culture

The EDPC commented that her team had drafted a people and culture plan, which included the theme of staff well-being.  James Gibbons (JG) gave a presentation to the Committee which captured the following :-. 

· A new programme was established in June 2019 and all managers were expected to use this programme. 

· The new process had (I) made staff feel more valued, (ii) helped with retention of staff. And (iii) helped to identify talented staff in the organisation. 

– It was recognised that undertaking staff appraisals would help with delivery across the Health Board. Appraisal linked to pay progression and applied to all staff under Agenda For Change. 

· A decision was made to reinstate the pay progression from 1st October 2021. The team had advised managers that staff appraisals should take place roughly 3 months before that date. 

· The team had put a plan together to feedback on some of the recovery phase. 

· It was anticipated that some of the digital offerings would help with training. The team were looking to simplify the paperwork and offer a simple approach. 

· The team were using targeted campaigns. 

·  ESR would allow the team to quantify and shape the learning needs for the Health Board’s staff. 

 

The EDPC added fire training was one of the statutory requirements and that a new campaign with the fire officers had been initiated to progress training in this area.  

JC commented further that:-

·  A plan was being developed to ensure the work place is safe for staff and patients. The team was actively targeting those departments which need to move forward in this regard. 

· With regards to eLearning the team know IT is a barrier and was working with departments to ensure all staff have access to a computer to complete any required learning. 

The EDPC presented the cultural showcase update to the Committee
The Committee Resolved that:

a) The update given in relation to VBA Campaign Presentation and the Cultural Showcase was noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/013
	Performance Reports
(a) Workforce Key Performance Indicators

(b) Organisation Key Performance Indicators

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer (DCOO) noted that the Committee members had read  the covering report and highlighted the following matters:-


· Planned care - the team had achieved the 70% commitment and were on track to achieve the 80% commitment at the end of the quarter.
· 

·  Improvement made with regard to cancer and compliance with single cancer pathway. 
· Highlighted the exceptional operational pressures that exist at present together with the challenges being faced. 

The IME noted that it was helpful to understand the context within which the Health Board was facing the issues and why the numbers have jumped up. 

The DCOO responded in the following terms: -

· patients were waiting longer in the department because of the COVID
· The operational team was concerned with poor patient experience.  
· There were a range of actions being put in place, in particular with regards to winter planning. 
· During COVID a site based leadership model had been put in place but her team had now looked at how the leadership team could work across the whole system. 

The IME questioned what impact this was having on planned care.  The DCOO confirmed that whilst the unscheduled care pressures were very challenging, the Health Board had not suspended elective surgery. 

The IMTS noted there was a balance and was pleased that the leadership model was being reinstated. She had attended a patient safety visit and queried if social care played a larger part of this and queried where the increased demand was coming from. The DCOO responded that, in the overall system, it was the inability to maintain a timely discharge. The demand had increased since COVID. 

The Chair asked for an update in respect of the mental health performance figures.  Particularly in relation to CAMHS. 
The DCOO explained that the COO has been working with the mental health team, in particular with CAMHS. The team were working with CAMHS and good traction was being made. 
The Chair queried if it would be useful for this Committee to receive the report from the Minister. The Committee members all agreed. 

The DCOO commented that at the last S&D meeting a request had been made for more information with regards to Optometry and eye care.  She then introduced Hayley Dixon (HD), Sharon Beatty (SB), Clare Elizabeth Evans (CEE) & Gareth Bulpin (GB).  . 

CEE gave the Committee some context from the last 18 months. This included:-

· Optometry in primary care had direction from Welsh Government primary care and had to work in a red phase. The team had to set up dedicated centres and were triaging and only seeing emergency patients. 

· As part of this phase, eye care in the hospital were going through similar issues. 

· Independent prescribing was set up in primary care. Vulnerable patients were able to be seen. Even though practices were then opened, social distancing was still in place and numbers were limited. Glaucoma treatment centres were open. Through all of this phase, the optometrists were part of the mass vaccination roll out. 

CEE discussed the slides on activity for pre-pandemic and where the team were now. 

SB explained the following: -

· Optometry had 4 independent prescribing practices. The plan would be to continue for more prescribers to join the service. 
· The team had been working with Cardiff University.
 
· With recent funding, the glaucoma service was to be expanded... 

HD commented that the team managed eye patients by risk rating – R1, R2 & R3. R1 was for the most urgent cases. Optometry had to report to Welsh Government every month.   Optometry had been fortunate to get some additional funding from Welsh Government. 

SB said that the team had been supporting optometrists to get extra qualifications. Originally, it started with 2 placements in 2018. Further discussions had taken place with colleagues and this year there would be 20 placements in Cardiff & Vale.  

HD commented that, Optometry was looking to have highly qualified optometrists working 20 sessions in clinics each week. The team would continue to provide the unscheduled care within primary care. 
. 

The DCOO thanked the team for their work and said that this was a great example of how teams can come together to transform a service and move care closer to home and be supported by a digital enabler. 

 
GB added that cultural change was the biggest factor, that is moving from the paper world to the digital world, and thanked the team for all the hard work that had been done. 


GB had a close association with the school of optometry and declared an interest. He commended the work and the uplifting presentation. He queried the following: --
(I) whether this was different or above and beyond that which was already happening in post graduate optometry work and was the assumption that this would be the new model for optometrists.  He also asked to what extent would this development would be built into the undergraduate programme so newly qualified people come up skilled in order to maintain the sustainable clinical deliver.

SB confirmed that higher Education Inspectorate Wales (HEIW) were trying to spread the optometrists per cluster and until a student had completed the clinical placement, the student could not be signed off. She added that Cardiff University were looking to redevelop their undergraduate course. 

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The year to date position against key organisational performance indicators for 2021-22 but in the context of prevailing operating conditions was noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/014
	Emerging thinking for developing care at a System Level 

The DCOO introduced Adam Wright (AW). 

AW delivered a presentation on behalf of the COO and included the following points 

· The presentation provided a follow up to the progress that had been made in relation to CAV 24/7.
· Historically there had been an inpatient reliable system and the plan was to move to a primary care led system. 

· It was important to have an alternative to hospital admission and to reduce re-admission. 

· There were 9 well-established streams of work. Much of the work had been carried out under in the unscheduled care programme. 

· AW gave the Committee a brief reminder of the background to  CAV 24/7 which included the following points:

· CAV24/7 was established as a pathfinder scheme for unscheduled care;
·  It was a forerunner for much of the work being undertaken via NHS 111;
· It was set up for urgent care not a medical emergency; and 
· It was set up to help with overcrowding in A&E during COVID. 

AW provided further comments as follows: -

· A large amount of activity had gone through CAV 24/7 in recent months which had impacted upon the number of patients being treated.
· Triage was challenging but the service was doing well to meet the demands. 
· It was important to improve care packages and end of life care. 

· Efforts were being made to secure funding from Welsh Government for an assessment unit. 

· Delivery of unscheduled care was not linear. Many projects were up and running. 

· In summary CAV 24/7 was a key enabler. There are a number of projects which had aligned and a lot of work was being undertaken to ensure good governance. 

The DCOO touched on the different priorities the team were undertaking and commented that there would be other plans and that this matter would  be an evolving picture. 

The Chair thanked AW for the presentation. He commented that a lot of the projects mentioned in the presentation had made no reference to how they were being supported. 

AW said that the presentation was to give an overview of how CAV 24/7 was developing, how the other many projects were being delivered at speed and how the emerging plans for unscheduled care was coming together. 

The DCOO noted that there were 3 key enablers, namely: – 
· Digital
· Workforce 
· Estates 
The DCOO commented that ME & Board support had been offered. Further, that since COVID, there are some processes that have led to a longer lead time. In general, the provision of unscheduled care was improving.   

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The opportunity for unscheduled care redesign that is afforded to the UHB through the success of CAV 24/7 was noted.

b) The significant ongoing work underway across a multitude of strategic and operational priorities was noted.

	

	SDC/21/09/015
	Board Assurance Framework

The DCG gave a brief summary of the Board Assurance Framework, noting there were 7 risks associated with the Strategy and Delivery Committee and stressed the importance for the Committee to maintain sight of the risks. 

The Committee Resolved that:

a) The risks in relation to Sustainable Culture Change, Inadequate Planned Care Capacity and Reducing Health Inequalities were reviewed to provide further assurance to the Board.


	

	SDC/21/09/016
	Q1 RPB Funding Stream updates

The Committee resolved that:

a) Noted for information the Q1 report on all short-term funding streams hosted by the UHB on behalf of the Regional Partnership Board, together with the summary of RPB discussion at its last meeting in July 2021.

	

	SDC/21/09/017
	Review of the Meeting

	

	SDC/21/09/018
	Date & Time of Next Meeting:
Tuesday 16th November 2021 at 09:00am Via MS Teams
	



4

